
Town of Twisp
Council Minutes — 01/22/13

7:00PM

Mayor Ing-Moody called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.

Council Members present: Bob Lloyd
Traci Day
Clay Hill
Clint Estes
John Fleming

Pledge of Allealance

Council Member Estes led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Request for Additions or Deletions to the Agenda

Additions: Resolution #13-5 13 Request to Planning Commission

Deletions: None

Public Meeting: Public Comment — Up to 3 minutes each

Allowing the use of ATVs in the Twisp Town Limits

Mayor Ing-Moody stated that on September 12, 2012 the North Central ATV Club made a presentation to
the Town Council asking for permission to operate ATVs on the streets of Twisp. At that time, the Club
stated that the Forest Service and Okanogan County were considering opening up more roads for ATV
use.

Comments:

Paul Taylor, 58 Balky Hill Road, Twisp: He is concern about ATV use: dust, noise and traffic. He moved
to Twisp and Balky Hill expecting peace and quiet. He sees more negative than positive from allowing
ATVs in Twisp. He can see economic gain and loss from ATV use.

Steven Cheek, 125 Magers St., Twisp: He is for ATV use in Twisp. ATVs as four wheel vehicles are
safer than dirt bikes. There is more dust and noise created by motorcycles than by ATVs.

Tom Gehring, 317 S. Glover St.,Twisp: He disagrees that there will be a revenue benefit from ATV use.
Sales taxes and property taxes encompass the main source of revenue for the Town and he sees no large
increase in sales tax from ATV use in Twisp. Noise, dust, smoke and ill will are created by the use of
ATVs.

Walter Sea, 75 Balky Hill Road, Twisp: Balky Hill Road is very wash boarded and has many sharp
curves. It is a difficult road to travel without adding ATV use. He is considering building a house on his
property and would reconsider if ATVs are allowed to travel Balky Hill Road.

Ed Surrette, 11 Chewach Heights Road, Winthrop: He is a member of the ATV Club. There are 15 states
and four counties and 10 towns in Washington State that allow ATV use. All City of Okanogan streets

Town Council Minutes — 01/22/13 1



are open to ATV travel. He stated that the Town would not see a large amount of ATV activity in Twisp.
The noise level of ATVs is regulated by RCW 46.09.470. The ATVs omit less smoke than diesel trucks.

Mark Seguin, 419 Burgar St, Twisp: He would like to have the freedom to drive his golf cart on the
streets of Twisp. The golf cart gets 90 miles to the gallon and would save on fuel costs verse the cost of
fuel for his diesel truck. ATVs are allowed in Conconully.

Ryan Peppler, business location 427 S. Glover St, Twisp: As a business owner, he sees the economic
value of allowing ATV use in Twisp. ATV owners will spend money on food, gas, camping and lodging
in Twisp instead of driving through without stopping.

Andrew Oosterhof, 506 Canyon St. Twisp: He sees revenue gain from allowing ATVs. ATVs are not as
loud as his construction equipment that travels through Twisp.

Robert Walton, 168 Twin Lakes Road, Winthrop: He is a member of the ATV Club. When the Club
goes to Wallace Idaho or Montana they spend money on food, lodging and repairs. ATVs are safe
recreational vehicles. ATVs can keep up with the flow of traffic where bicycles can’t.

Maggie Coon, 335 Twisp River Road, Twisp: She is a member of the Methow Valley Citizen’s Council
and the Council’s mission promotes the rural character of the valley for responsible quality of life. She
gave information from the Consumer Safety Commission which states that ATVs were not meant for use
on paved highways. She stated that the Methow Valley is identified as special and unique.

Tha Marie Remsberg, 993 Twisp Canton Road, Twisp: She would like to be able to ride her ATV into
Twisp. The Town has gone backwards since the mill shut down and the Forest Service left Town to
consolidate with Winthrop. You can’t even get a newspaper delivered to your home. ATVs would be
good for Twisp.

Mark Wolf-Armstrong, 335 Twisp River Road, Twisp: He stated Twisp is at a moment in time and we
have to decide where to go from here. He was considering moving his business to downtown Twisp but
would not if ATVs were allowed on the streets. The valley is moving in positive direction with more
bicycle and skiing opportunities. He stated that Twisp has a quiet and peaceful life style.

Bruce Morrison, 314 Br dge St, Twisp: He stated we are fortunate that Twisp is a pedestrian friendly
Town as the elderly and children and dogs travel the streets of Twisp. Non-local travel would threaten
the foot traffic of Twisp. With more traffic, it will be harder to move snow around.

Joe Callier, Winthrop: He stated he is the former owner the River Bend Recreation Park. There is a lack
of ATV recreation trails or roads to encourage ATV users to stay in the Valley. The Town is in a
financial crisis and ATV use would generate revenue. The ATV Club members pick up trash in
campgrounds.

Roxie Miller, Winthrop: She stated that she has information that ATVs are unsafe on paved roads. The
Forest Service has not designated many areas for ATV use. She stated that the County asked the Club to
ask the Towns to allow them to travel the streets of the Towns before they would give connectivity to the
Towns. She stated that there is nowhere for the ATVs to go to and from. The ATVs will travel in big
groups. She stated that the ATVs top speed is 35 miles per hour and cannot travel at speeds designated on
some county roads.

Herb Rosenberg, 612 June St., Twisp: He stated he has concerns about parking in Twisp with ATV use.
A truck and long trailer would take up 3 parking spaces. He asked where ATVs would travel to and

Town Council Minutes — 01/22/13 2



from. He stated the Club has no County roads to travel. The ATVs would create noise, traffic and dust
which Twisp does not need.

Jim Schulz, 53 Twisp River Road, Twisp: He stated he has safety concerns with ATV use in Twisp. He
stated he has seen the lack of judgment used by teenagers with vehicle driving and water skiing. He
stated he believes the use would overload the Twisp Police Department.

Dave Hopkins, 13 Storer Creek Road, Twisp: He stated he has concerns about public safety with ATV
use. Twisp Winthrop Eastside County Road and Balky Hill Road are curvy and he would not want to
encourage increased traffic. He stated he is worried about ATV off-road use in the areas around his
home.

Dawn Woodmff, 971 B Twisp Carlton Road, Twisp: She stated she has concerns with safety, noise and
the quality of life that would associated with ATV use. She reported that activities at the Twisp
Municipal Airport, industrial areas of Twisp and downtown Twisp create noise that carries to her home.

Chris Holmes, 38 Lower Bear Creek Road, Winthrop: She stated that she and her husband Jerry are in
favor of ATV use in Twisp. She noted there will be potential problems but the community is caring and
intelligent and can solve the problems created by a new use. She noted the concept of Share the Road
with bicyclists, motorcycles, joggers, and walkers. She asked how we can appreciate the quality of life
we have in the Valley if we are not fair.

Paul and Pat Tillman, 44 Barnaby Road, Winthrop: They stated that the safety statists show that ATV
use is a safe means of transportation. ATVs are allowed everywhere in Idaho and Montana. The
Montana State Patrol reports more accidents with motorcycles that ATVs. The Tillmans stated that
accidents occurred more with the original three-wheeled ATVs. The Town would be protected by
liability insurance.

George Wooten, 226 W. Twisp Aye, Twisp: He stated that traffic accidents involving ATVs in Twisp
could increase Town’s liability insurance. He stated that parking is already an issue for businesses in
Twisp. The backing out of a parking space and onto traffic on Glover St. is dangerous. He stated that he
lives on a corner and at the base of a hill on W. 2’~ Ave., and many drivers peal out as they turn to travel
up W. 2nd Ave. and spread gravel all over parked vehicles. He stated that the action of turning up W. 2~
Ave. creates air pollution and excess exhaust which lingers in the air. He stated that ATVs’ knobby tires

are not meant for paved roads.

Sandra Streiby, 300 N. Lincoln St. Twisp: She stated she is neutral on the use of ATVs in Twisp. She
stated questions about the definition of ATVs, how are ATVs regulated, do drivers have to have a valid
driver’s license, may 13 year olds be allowed to drive on non-highway roads, lighting requirements, hours
of operation, speed, and passengers. She has concerns about ATV use in residential, shoreline and
sensitive areas. She stated concerns with lower pressured tires and skidding.

Bill Moody, 620 Moody Lane, Twisp: He noted the Consumer Report recommending that ATVs not be
used on paved roads. He has concerns about accidents and liability insurance. He stated that ATVs
would compromise the vehicle volume in Twisp. He stated concerns about law enforcement workload,
helmet requirements, age limits, and licensing. He stated the ATV use could have a negative impact on
the economy of Twisp. He stated that larger groups of ATVs would have the potential for increased
liability, safety issues and decreased quality of life.

Sandra Moody, 620 Moody Lane, Twisp: She stated she has lived in the valley for 45 years and is a
member of the Chamber of Commerce. She is excited about recent growth in Twisp. She asked to

Town Council Minutes — 01/22/13 3



Council to review the RCWs and use caution as they discuss both sides of the issue. She stated that
ATVs are not good on paved roads. She stated she has concerns about age limits of drivers, licensing of
drivers and off-road travel.

Spencer King, Omak: He stated that he is the president of the North Central ATV Club. He stated that
the ATV members are safe and responsible drivers. The Club works with the Forest Service, Dept of
Natural Resources, and Okanogan County Trail Coalition. He stated that each city where ATVs travel
write their own ordinances to allow ATV use, liability insurance, lighting and licensing. He stated there is
an economic gain from ATV use in a city. He stated that when families travel, for instance to Wallace,
Idaho, each family will spend $400 -$650 for lodging, food and miscellaneous expenses. He asked the
Council to allow ATV use for a year and see if it works.

Richard Tinglestad, 419 N. M.V. Hwy, Twisp: He stated that ATVs are for off-road use. He stated the
Town would be setting a precedent and opening up a problem by allowing ATV use in Town. He stated
that not all ATV users are part of a responsible club and some will go off road and damage the
environment.

Dwain Hutson, 45 Poorman Creek Road, Twisp: He was the Twisp Fire and Rescue Chief for 16 years.
He stated that as a business owner in Twisp and employing 5 people, every little bit helps, and revenue
from ATV use would help. The ATVs are clean burning vehicles. Everyone should be able to use the
trails and get along.

Josh Morgan, 20325 SR 20, Twisp: He stated he is in favor of ATV use h~ the Town of Twisp. ATVs
should be able to share the road with bicyclists who do not register and pay for tabs for their bicycles and
joggers who do not pay to jog on the roads. He stated he believes the Twisp Police Department is capable
of handling ATV use complaints. He stated that if there is parking issues in the summer the Farmers
Market could be canceled. He stated that Harley motorcycles and the Twisp Municipal Airport are noisy.
ATVs would generate revenue and their use in Twisp needs to happen.

Isabelle Spohn, 419 N. Hwy 20, Twisp: She noted that she had already sent in a comment to the Council
on ATVs and is not in favor of their use in Twisp. She stated that ATVs create air pollution. She quoted
information from 1999 about smog pollutants and ATVs. She quoted minutes from the NC ATV Club
minutes where President King noted not all riders know the rules. She stated ATV safety starts with the
driver. She stated that the Twisp Police Department cannot control speeders in Twisp as drivers drive 50
miles an hour heading north out of Twisp. She stated the echo of noise from vehicles has a cumulative
impact on her neighborhood.

Peter Morgan, 55 Balky Hill Road, Twisp: He stated he is marginally against ATVs use in Twisp. He
stated he doesn’t see ATVs as a huge revenue source from visitors. He stated that hikers and skiers could
co-exist with ATVs. The pristine environment is what brings people to the Valley and ATV use would
not help that image.

Jennifer Molesworth, Upper Beaver Creek Road, Twisp: She stated safety and liability concerns with
ATV use. She stated there would need to be more County roads opened to ATVs for a network of
connectivity to Twisp. She stated the ATV drivers may not stay on the roads and may impact the camp
grounds and creeks.

Paul Sallady, 41 Upper Beaver Creek Road, Twisp: He stated he has concerns about ATV traffic on
game land.

Town Council Minutes — 01122/13 4



Clay King, owner Pacific Pride and Kings Tire Service, Twisp: He stated that as a hiker he hated the
horse use on our mountain trails. Snowmobilers and skiers have had to learn to get along on the trails.
He stated that ATV use is part of the evolution of growth in the Valley. He stated that Share the Road
means that we all respect the rules and ATV use is workable in the Valley.

Leah Knowles, 1035 Burton St, Twisp: She stated she is not in favor of ATV use in Twisp. She lives
across from an industrial area and there are kids riding motorized vehicles which create dust pollution that
travels to her property. She stated that the Dept. of Fish and Wildlife has shut down that area to
recreation travel due to osprey nesting in the area and the need for improved air quality for the osprey.

Deb Thomas, 435 Balky Hill Road, Twisp: She stated that there is a one lane bridge on Balky Hill Road,
the road also has hairpin curves and the road is unsafe for ATV travel. She states dust, noise and
increased traffic as concerns.

Jim Thomas, 435 Balky Hill Road, Twisp: He stated that his neighbors use ATVs for farming activities
but more ATV use would need to be regulated.

Sandy Liman, Ainsworth St., Twisp: He stated he is not opposed to ATVs but like snowmobiles they
could evolve into more powerful and fast machines. He stated the Council should have the Forest Service
involved if the use is allowed in Twisp.

Amy Stork, 920 Marble St., Twisp: She stated that as a neighbor of Leah Knowles she also has a concern
about ATV use in Twisp. She stated she would encourage the Council to create a diverse commission to
create the regulations to allow ATV use in Twisp. She stated she would encourage the NC ATV Club to
educate citizens on ATV rules and enforcement.

Dave Rodriguez, Okanogan County Sheriff’s Office Deputy, was asked by Council Member Hill about
insurance on ATVs. Deputy Rodriguez stated Washington State law: ATVs are in the same category as
motorcycles and insurance is not required, 13 year olds can drive ATVs on non-highway roads, 16 years
old and up are required to be licensed, all are required to wear helmets and ATVs are equipped with head
and tail lights. He stated ATVs are not required to have turn signals.

Mr. Surrette stated that use of the county and frontage roads, connectivity to Forest Service lands, guided
rides, and dinners for ATV riders are all part of the experience the Club has in Wallace.

Council Member Fleming asked if ATV use in other states can be researched; Wallace Idaho in particular.

Action: Clerk Moriarty will contact the Wallace Idaho Chamber of Commerce and research ATV
use there and in other localities.

Council Member Hill asked about the machine cycle of the ATVs and was told ATVs are 4 stroke engines
which burn more efficiently than older 2 stroke engines.

It was stated that the emissions from ATVs is no more that the emissions from present day lawn
mowers.

It was discussed if limiting the timeframe of use of ATVs on Balky Hill Road would ease concerns of
dust on the road.

Mayor Ing-Moody closed the public hearing at 8:47 pm.

Town Council Minutes — 01/22/13 5



Mayor Ing-Moody recapped the public comment period. She stated there were good points brought up
about ATV use in Twisp. She noted that she has met with Michael Liu, District Ranger of the M.V.
Ranger District. The Forest Service is working on a draft travel plan which includes ATV use in the
forest. The final draft could be a year away.

It was discussed that there are Okanogan County roads open to ATV travel and that the Council needs to
understand the connectivity of Town limits to county roads to trail accesses.

Action: Mayor Ing-Moody will contact Okanogan County Commissioners about ATV use on
county roads and future plans for addition roads for ATV use.

Council Member Day questioned ATV use on Hwy 20 in Twisp. In her research, she has learned that
vehicles on state highways need be licensed, have lights, mirrors and license plates.

Action: The Washington State Department of Transportation will be contacted for information on
who has jurisdiction on Hwy 20 in the matter of ATV travel, the Town or the Department.

Council Member Hill commented that ATVs should travel on commercial streets and not residential
streets in Twisp. He commented that potential use has been suggested on County and Forest Service
roads to the north and east (Conconully and Loup Loup area) and not in the area of Lookout Mountain at
this time.

Chief Budrow noted that he had previously commented that Glover St. should not be open to ATV use.
He feels parking and backing out of parking spaces would be compromised by ATV use on Glover St.

Council Member Hill explained liability insurance and causation in accidents. A traffic accident would
be the responsibility of the drivers who caused the accident not the location of the accident.

Mayor Ing-Moody reiterated concerns of public safety, liability, and permitted vehicles.

Council Member Estes reiterated the timeframe of the Forest Service Travel Plan of April or May 2014
and Forest Service roads do not connect to the Town at this time.

Council Member Hill stated that allowing ATV use in Twisp would bring in revenue and regulations can
be repealed if necessary.

Deputy Rodriquez stated that the County had taken extensive public comments before opening up county
roads to ATV use. ATV use in Conconully had not created in issues for the Okanogan County Sheriff’s
Office.

Council Member Day commented that she feels ATVs would conflict with pedestrian safety and
questions that has jurisdiction over Hwy 20 regulations in Twisp, ATV product safety and legal
endorsements to operate ATVs.

Council Member Estes commented on the energy it would take to create an ATV ordinance and the Town
is unsure about the Forest Service Travel Plan and Okanogan County Commissioners decisions on road
openings.

Council Member Lloyd commented that the Town could move ahead with fact finding on ATVs and have
the Council’s concerns and questions answered.

Town Council Minutes — 01/22/13 6



Spencer King noted that the Okanogan County Commissioners will be holding a public hearing to take
comments on ATV use on additional roads in the County.

Other Public Comment Period:

There was no other public comment.

OLD/NEW BUSINESS

Fire District #6 — Contract for Fire Protection Services

Mayor Ing-Moody and Council discussed points of concern in the draft contract proposal from Okanogan
County Fire District #6. They have questions of legal concerns and points of clarification in the draft
proposal.

Action: Mayor Ing-Moody will contact Attorney DeTro and work on resolving issues of legal
concern for the February l2~ meeting.

Ordinance #656 — Repealing Section 9.10.010 (11) of the Twisp Municipal Code related to Firearms

It had come to the attention of the Town Council that Section 9.10.010(11) of the Twisp Municipal Code
violates the provisions of RCW 9.41.290 and RCW 9.41.300 related to the possession of firearms in town
parks.

Motion:

Council Member Fleming moved to approve Ordinance #656 as presented. The motion was seconded by
Council Member Day and passed unanimously.

Resolution #13-512-Directing Planning Commission to Address TMC 18.15.100(2) (f) of the Zoning
Ordinance

In accordance with Twisp Municipal Code 18.50.100 the Twisp Town Council directs the Twisp Planning
Commission through Resolution #13-512 to conduct the process to amend Title 18 to eliminate the
prohibition of firearms in temporary markets.

Motion:

Council Member Estes moved to approve Resolution #13-5 12 directing the Planning Commission to
address Twisp Municipal Code 18.15.100(2)(f) of the Zoning Ordinance and amend Title 18 to eliminate
the prohibition of firearms in temporary markets. The motion was seconded by Council Member Day and
passed unanimously.

Capital Facilities Plan - Set Public Hearing

Superintendent Moss reported that the Town is required to submit a Capital Facilities Plan to Washington
State Department of Transportation Aviation Division addressing Twisp Municipal Airport projects and
their ranking in importance to the Airport.

Town Council Minutes — 01/22/13 7



Motion:

Council Member Lloyd moved to set a public hearing date of February 12, 2013 for approval of the 6-
Year Capital Facilities Plan for Airport Improvements. The motion was seconded by Council Member
Hill and passed unanimously.

Resolution #13-513 Directing the Planning Commission to Address TMC Title 18 to Amend the
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation Map and the Official Town Zoning Map

The Twisp Town Council upon approval the Preliminary Marver Planned Development Modification and
in accordance with 18.50.100 directs the Town of Twisp Planning Commission to conduct the process
necessary to amend Title 18 of the Twisp Municipal Code including the Twisp Comprehensive Plan Land
Use Designation Map and the Official Town Zoning Map.

Motion:

Council Member Day moved to approve Resolution #13-513 directing the Planning Commission to
address Twisp Municipal Code Title 18 to amend the Official Town Zoning Map and the Twisp
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation Map. The motion was seconded by Council Member
Fleming and passed unanimously.

Mayor’s Report

Mayor Ing-Moody reported on the following:

• The Elected Officials training is scheduled for Tuesday, February 5th from 6-8 pm.
• The tentative day for the Council Retreat is March 18th~

Staff Reports

Written staff reports were submitted and placed in the Council packets for review. Mayor Ing-Moody
asked Council if they had any questions regarding the reports submitted by the Department Heads.

There were no questions.

CommissionJCommittee/Board Reports

There were no reports submitted.

Council Member Hill reported that there will be an Okanogan County Transit Authority Board meeting
on January 29th

Consent Agenda

• Accounts Payable/Payroll
• Approval Minutes 01/08/13

Vouchers audited and certified by the auditing officer as required by RCW 42.24.080, and those expense
reimbursement claims certified as required by RCW 42.24.090, have been recorded on a listing, which
has been made available to the Town Council. The following voucher/checks are approved for payment
by a majority vote on this 22nd day of January.

Town Council Minutes —01/22/13 8



Checks 29692-29706 $13,635.14 12/31/12
Payroll 13389-13391 $2,250.00 01/15/13
Checks 29707-29718 $65,302.03 01/22/13

US Rural Development EFTs Trans # 81-83 $1,354.00 01/28/13
Checks 29719-29724 $378.00 01/31/13

Motion:

Council Member Day moved to approve the minutes and consent agenda as presented. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Hill and passed. Council Member Lloyd abstained.

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Council; Mayor Ing-Moody adjourned the meeting at
10:00 pm.

ATT(2~~
Clerk/Treasurer Jackie Moriarty ..../‘

APPROVED:

Town Council Minutes — 01/22/13 9


